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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Good morning.

          3  Welcome to today's hearing of the New York City

          4  Council's Committee on Transportation. My name is

          5  John Liu.  I have the privilege of chairing this

          6  Committee.  Today, we have convened this hearing for

          7  the purpose of considering Intro. No. 430, which

          8  would designate a uniform exterior for authorized

          9  commuter vans operating in New York City.

         10  Specifically, it would designate the color orange

         11  for the exterior of these commuter vans.  Orange is

         12  just an idea.  If anybody has a more favorite color,

         13  that's open also.  The goal here is to provide an

         14  easily recognizable exterior for authorized commuter

         15  vans much like medallion taxi cabs in New York City

         16  have an exterior bright yellow color.

         17                 This is necessary because van

         18  services proliferate throughout New York City, and

         19  yet many of them do so in an illegal basis, whether

         20  they be completely unauthorized to operate by the

         21  TLC, or they have certain kinds of authorizations,

         22  but not as commuter vans but more as livery

         23  services.  For the public's purpose and for the

         24  purposes of uniform enforcement across the City, it

         25  is necessary to make it easier to recognize exactly
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          2  what an authorized commuter van is and what van

          3  services are not indeed authorized to operate in

          4  that manner.

          5                 I have introduced Intro. No. 430 to

          6  address the concerns that we have about the illegal

          7  commuter vans that are operating.  Authorized

          8  commuter vans serve an important purpose in New York

          9  City.  They are part of our mass transportation

         10  network and they serve a very important purpose

         11  especially in areas of the City that are underserved

         12  by the Metropolitan Transportation Authority, and as

         13  such, we need to do what we can to allow the

         14  commuter vans to operate and yet do so within the

         15  stated goals under the legislation with which

         16  they've become authorized to operate.

         17                 We will not be hearing directly from

         18  the Taxi and Limousine Commission.  They had stated

         19  they were not available today, if we had the hearing

         20  today.  Nonetheless, for many different reasons, we

         21  do proceed with the hearing today.  They will offer

         22  a written testimony which I will enter into the

         23  record.

         24                 We've been joined by Council Members

         25  Vincent Ignizio from Staten Island, Miguel Martinez
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          2  from Manhattan and Diana Reyna from Brooklyn and

          3  Queens.  I'd like to invite --  I'm sorry  -- and

          4  Council Member Joseph Addabbo from Queens.  Council

          5  Member Miguel Martinez is on his way as are other

          6  Members.

          7                 At 10:30, there is an Executive

          8  Budget briefing to be delivered by Mayor Bloomberg

          9  so Committee Members will  --  And speak of the

         10  angel, Miguel Martinez is here as is Council Member

         11  Larry Seabrook from the Bronx.  As I was beginning

         12  to say, at 10:30 there is an Executive Budget

         13  briefing which many of our Members will need to

         14  depart for, and so I would like to get this hearing

         15  underway as quickly as possible.  We call up our

         16  first witnesses, Joe Giannetto, Gladstone Barrett

         17  and Juan Perer.  Please join us at the witness

         18  table.  Mr. Giannetto, do you want to proceed first?

         19                 MR. GIANNETTO: Good morning, Mr.

         20  Chair, members of the Committee.  Just took a quick

         21  look at the bill this morning, and although we don't

         22    --  My name is Joe Giannetto.  I represent the

         23  Metropolitan Taxicab Board of Trade, and while we

         24  don't take a position for or against this particular

         25  bill at this time, I just wanted to take the
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          2  opportunity to express maybe some concerns in

          3  caution that I have with the bill.

          4                 It's pretty innocuous recommending a

          5  color for commuter vans.  One concern would be that

          6  the color orange not be too closely associated with

          7  yellow taxis in the City, and so maybe lime green

          8  might be a different recommendation, but

          9  nevertheless the second concern, and probably the

         10  most important is we wouldn't necessarily support

         11  legislation that tends to facilitate the illegal

         12  operations of commuter vans, specifically, the

         13  illegal street hails that occur in many of the

         14  popular commuter van corridors like in Brooklyn on

         15  Flatbush Avenue.  It seems to me that most commuter

         16  vans, even licensed ones, engage in this type of

         17  illegal activity where they simply cherry pick

         18  passengers from bus stops, and really they're not

         19  prearranged pursuant to the law.  So I would have a

         20  concern about legislation that facilitates that mode

         21  of illegal operations and those are the two comments

         22  I just wanted to make today.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         24  Giannetto.  Mr. Barrett.

         25                 MR. BARRETT: Mr. Chair, good morning.
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          2    Gladstone Barrett, Yours N Mine Transportation.  I

          3  have one particular concern that I would like to

          4  express here today.  I have no objection against the

          5  color.  It will identify the legal commuter van.  My

          6  concern is the position that commuter vans are in at

          7  the moment.  It is well known that the commuter van

          8  as is operate (sic) does not pick a passenger along

          9  the prescribed route that is approved by TLC.  At

         10  the moment, if we depend and prearrange, all the

         11  commuter vans at this time would stop operate.  It

         12  is well established that the commuter van runs and

         13  picks up passengers. Our concern is that we are

         14  being harassed by the police whatever time we are

         15  letting off our passengers and whatever time we are

         16  picking up our passengers.  Even if you are letting

         17  off your passenger, you're being harassed by the

         18  police.

         19                 What we would like, we would like to

         20  have a window of opportunity wherein the commuter

         21  van has some legal status to pick up and discharge

         22  their passenger without being harassed by the police

         23  as long as we are not obstructing the City

         24  operation.

         25                 As is right now, on Parsons and
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          2  Archer, TLC will grant us permission to pick up and

          3  drop off at the subway.  There is an established van

          4  stop at the subway.  It is impossible for us to have

          5  that van stop, which is legal for us to drop off and

          6  to pick up passengers, and at the same time we

          7  cannot pick up the passenger away from the bus stop.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Right.

          9                 MR. BARRETT: Then we are out of the

         10  assigned commuter van stop that we have.  We are

         11  being harassed  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Mr. Barrett, thank

         13  you very much for your testimony.  This hearing has

         14  been convened for the purpose of hearing testimony

         15  on Intro. 430.  I understand that there are a

         16  multitude of issues facing commuter van operators as

         17  well as the public- at- large.  I don't wish to have

         18  a full blown hearing on all of the issues related to

         19  commuter van service.  The subject at hand today is

         20  making it easier for the general public as well as

         21  law enforcement officers to easily recognize what is

         22  a properly authorized commuter van, and I think that

         23  that's of great benefit to the legally operating

         24  commuter vans as well.  So I'd like to focus the

         25  testimony on that.
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          2                 MR. BARRETT: I have no problem with

          3  that, but there's the next problem that faces us,

          4  right?  While we are thinking about a color, all the

          5  expenses are coming back to the van's operator, all

          6  expense.

          7                 We have just assigned new signs on

          8  the vans, which we definitely have to pay for that.

          9  Now that we are embarking on the color for the vans,

         10  we definitely have to go back again and pay for that

         11  replacement of signs.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So how much do you

         13  think it would cost to paint the exterior of a

         14  commuter van?

         15                 MR. BARRETT: There are several

         16  different offers that we get.  Some said $2, $2.5,

         17  some said $1,500.  It all depends.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  So that's

         19  something that we'll certainly consider.  How often

         20  are you required to paint over commuter vans?

         21                 MR. BARRETT: It can last for a long

         22  time unless the van is damaged, then you've got to

         23  paint it over, but it can last a period of time.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.

         25  Terrific.  Thank you. Mr. Perer, just please
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          2  identify yourself for the record.

          3                 MR. PEREZ: I think there was some

          4  confusion.  My name is Mr. Perez.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Perez?  Okay.

          6                 MR. PEREZ: Yes, and then you're Mr.

          7  Barrett.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Oh, you know what?

          9  Because your (z) looks a little bit like an (r).

         10                 MR. PEREZ: I apologize for my

         11  handwriting.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: No problem.  Go

         13  ahead, please.

         14                 MR. PEREZ: Chairman, Members of the

         15  Committee, I am not an active commuter van driver,

         16  but I am a concerned member of the community,

         17  someone who has obviously worked with the commuter

         18  vans, has ridden the commuter vans, and I'm just

         19  speaking on behalf of the concerned community

         20  because I feel that there are several issues here

         21  that aren't being addressed with the color of a

         22  commuter van.  Two of the most important issues

         23  being enforcement and awareness.

         24                 I think that, no offense to most of

         25  the people in this room, but of you have never
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          2  ridden a commuter van, and let's be honest about

          3  that, and never will.  Outside of the people in this

          4  room, I don't know how many people will be aware of

          5  the fact that the commuter vans are actually going

          6  to be changing color, and it doesn't really matter

          7  whether or not the vans are purple, green, blue.

          8  The issue is still that there are a number of

          9  illegal commuter vans out there, and there a number

         10  of vans that are doing the right thing and trying to

         11  maintain a level of legality and following the rules

         12  and regulations as set forth by the City codes as

         13  well as the Taxi and Limousine Commission.  However,

         14  what this is requiring the drivers to do, and the

         15  van company owners to do, is take on a big financial

         16  push or burden as it relates to maintaining a level

         17  of legality whether it be the level of insurance,

         18  maintaining CDL drivers.  What this enables illegal

         19  van drivers to do is operate freely without these

         20  rules and regulations because there is no

         21  enforcement and there is no awareness, and those are

         22  the two main issues.

         23                 If I am a passenger on Flatbush

         24  Avenue in Brooklyn, I don't care whether the van is

         25  orange.  I just want to make sure that it gets me
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          2  from Flatbush Avenue and Livingston Street to Kings

          3  Plaza.  That is my main concern, not whether or not

          4  the van is orange, whether the van is blue.

          5                 Until there is a level of enforcement

          6  where the illegal vans out there are being told that

          7  they can't operate, whether they are being taken off

          8  the street, whether they are being handed violations

          9  that are going to push them off the street, or there

         10  is some type of enforcement that will push them into

         11  becoming legal.  Now there are way too many vans on

         12  the street, especially in Brooklyn.  Let's be

         13  honest, but changing the color of a vehicle is not

         14  going to make that any different  So I reiterate my

         15  point that enforcement as well as awareness to the

         16  community because we can sit here in this room today

         17  and discuss anything.  We can discuss you know

         18  putting televisions in each vehicle.  However, if

         19  that has not been made aware to the public, it makes

         20  not difference because each one of the people in

         21  this room with the exception of the people who drive

         22  a van, probably have never ridden in a van.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  It may

         24  be true that most members, perhaps all members of

         25  this Committee have not ridden or will ever ride in
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          2  a commuter van.  That maybe true, but that's also a

          3  statement that's true of most of the eight million

          4  people of the City.  So that doesn't mean that we

          5  don't consider ways to improve the industry and to

          6  make it safer and more reliable for the general

          7  public.  As Council Member Seabrook stated he has

          8  ridden in a commuter van.  I have on many occasions

          9  ridden in commuter vans myself.  So before you make

         10  presumptions about this Committee, I would think

         11  that you should do a little bit of research first.

         12                 Now to get to your points, your main

         13  statement that altering the color exterior would

         14  have no impact.  Let me ask you this.  Do you think

         15  that law enforcement officers  --  I think TLC

         16  inspectors have a generally good idea of what is

         17  legal and what is illegal.  Do you think the average

         18  police officer in the local community precincts

         19  knows exactly what an authorized commuter van is and

         20  what an illegal van operation is?  Can they make

         21  that distinction easily?

         22                 MR. PEREZ: I don't think to the

         23  fullest extent, but I think we're focusing on the

         24  wrong things here.  I mean let's be honest.  We want

         25  to focus on passenger safety.
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          2                 Now I take a little bit of offense to

          3  the fact that I did not say that everybody in this

          4  room.  I said most people.  I said most people in

          5  this room, and I know that Council Member Liu that

          6  you have ridden a commuter van.  I didn't know that

          7  Mr. Seabrook.  I apologize.  However, what I'm

          8  trying to focus the attention of the Committee is on

          9  the passengers.  I, myself, am a passenger, and I

         10  want to make sure that when I get in a commuter van

         11  that I'm safe.  The color of the vehicle does not

         12  matter to me, and unless I know that the color of

         13  the vehicle does make a difference  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Mr. Perez, my

         15  question to you is does the average police officer

         16  in the local precincts know the distinction between

         17  an authorized commuter van and a van that is not

         18  authorized?

         19                 MR. PEREZ: I believe I answered that,

         20  and I would say that I would beg to say that they do

         21  not.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  So that is

         23  the simple purpose.  That is one of the simple

         24  purposes behind making the exterior of the

         25  authorized commuter van easily recognizable just
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          2  like yellow medallion taxi cabs are easily

          3  recognizable by any member of law enforcement.

          4                 Now the other point is do you think

          5  members of the general public, the riders who we

          6  want to protect, who our first priority is to

          7  protect, do you think members of the general public

          8  can easily distinguish between an authorized

          9  commuter van and a van that is picking people up but

         10  that is not operating with the proper authorization?

         11                 MR. PEREZ: I think that's why I

         12  brought up the issue of enforcement and awareness.

         13  I think that you know there have been many

         14  provisions that have been put in by the Taxi and

         15  Limousine Commission, and no offense them.

         16  Obviously they are trying to do their job most

         17  effectively.  However, it is not easily

         18  identifiable.  There is plenty information that you

         19  know whether it's down to the driver's home address

         20  that is listed on the vehicle, but that doesn't make

         21  any difference to a rider.  It doesn't make a

         22  difference to me.

         23                 I understand your question.  Believe

         24  me.  I understand what your question is, but the

         25  general public will not know without awareness, and
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          2  I think that the Council is once again putting more

          3  onus on the commuter van drivers to do something

          4  extra to make sure that the police are able to

          5  differentiate between a legal commuter van and an

          6  illegal commuter van.  To be honest with you, that's

          7  not my concern.  My concern is making sure that my

          8  mother or my grandmother or my daughter who gets

          9  into a vehicle knows that this vehicle is safe, and

         10  I do not believe that these provisions that we are

         11  discussing today address those issues.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well your testimony

         13  seems rather contradictory.  On the one hand, you

         14  want to make it easier for enforcement to take

         15  place, and public awareness.  That is precisely what

         16  we're doing because, even as you state yourself,

         17  many of the police officers can't really tell easily

         18  what an authorized van is and what an illegal

         19  operation is.

         20                 MR. PEREZ: I think that has to do

         21  with education. I want to know what provisions are

         22  being put in place, in addition to the color, to let

         23  the police officers know, to let the Taxi and

         24  Limousine Commission enforcement agents know.  Let

         25  the commuter van drivers and commuter van riders
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          2  know what are the provisions being put in place  --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Mr. Perez, the law

          4  already provides for a substantial amount of

          5  requirements on authorized commuter vans.  I would

          6  ask that you  --  Well you probably do know many of

          7  the provisions.  The law already provides for

          8  certain maintenance requirements, drivers' licensing

          9  requirements, insurance requirements.  All of those

         10  requirements under current law are designed to

         11  protect the general public, both the riding public

         12  as well as the communities that these van operations

         13  take place in. So those laws are already in place.

         14  What's missing, and again the laws are in place to

         15  protect the safety of the public, both the public-

         16  at- large and the passengers who actually get on the

         17  van. This is not just about the passengers.  It's

         18  also about the communities that these vans operate

         19  within  --

         20                 MR. PEREZ: Unfortunately, I believe

         21  that it's not about the passengers.  That is my main

         22  concern.  I do not feel that --  Once again, I am

         23  going to reiterate the same point, and maybe I'm

         24  speaking to deaf ears, but what I'm trying to say is

         25  that how do I as a rider know the difference between
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          2  a  --  You know what? I know for a fact that when

          3  whether it's a passenger E- 350, they come out in

          4  various colors.  So all of the vehicles that have

          5  been bought this year are white.  Next year, Ford

          6  may decide to make all of those vehicles maroon.

          7  The year after, they may decide to make all of those

          8  vehicles blue.  So if 50 percent of the vehicles, or

          9  20 percent of the vehicles, all of a sudden show up

         10  to be orange that's not going to make a difference

         11  to me as a rider.  I need to have some type of

         12  public relations campaign whether it's advertising

         13  or awareness in the streets you know through the

         14  newspaper, through the communities to let people

         15  know that these are safe vehicles and these are not.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well that's exactly

         17  what we're trying to do to make it easily

         18  recognizable to the public- at- large. Thank you,

         19  Mr. Perez.

         20                 MR. PEREZ: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Our next panel

         22  consisting of Hector Ricketts, Anthony Henry and

         23  Carmen Grant.

         24                 Thank you.  For those who have just

         25  joined us recently, this is a hearing of the City
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          2  Council's Committee on Transportation.  Anybody who

          3  would like to testify, please ask the Sergeant for

          4  one of these slips to fill out.  Thank you.  Mr.

          5  Ricketts.

          6                 MR. RICKETTS: Mr. Chairman, good

          7  morning.  Good morning members of the Committee.

          8  Let me applaud you again, Mr. Chairman, for hosting

          9  this Committee meeting.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I'm sorry, Mr.

         11  Ricketts.  Bear with me for a second.  I was remiss

         12  to not have acknowledged the presence of Council

         13  Member Oliver Koppell from the Bronx.  I know we

         14  have Executive Budget briefings going on right now,

         15  so members will have to be coming in and out.  Thank

         16  you.  Sorry about that Mr. Ricketts.

         17                 MR. RICKETTS: Let me again thank you

         18  for convening this meeting, and for making the

         19  distinction, and it's very important to observe

         20  this, making the distinction between legal and

         21  illegal vans.  For too long, we've sat in these

         22  Committee meetings and talked about the elimination

         23  of vans.  So we've come along way, and we have to

         24  applaud the members of the Committee, the community

         25  and the van operators who have stuck to this issue.
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          2                 The idea of a color code for commuter

          3  vans is a very brilliant one.  In most

          4  transportation networks vehicles are color coded.

          5  It's a good marketing tool, and it certainly lets

          6  the public know what entity they are dealing with.

          7                 The implementation of a color code,

          8  however, is a bit premature.  There are a lot of

          9  issues that have been sitting on the table

         10  unresolved for too long.  One cannot implement a

         11  color code for commuter vans without revisiting this

         12  onerous piece of legislation called Local Law 115.

         13  What this color code will do at this time is simply

         14  shade the chaos that exists in our streets today.

         15  It will shift it from multi- colors to one color.

         16  It is a brilliant idea.  We have some issues with

         17  the timing.

         18                 What I think should occur is that  --

         19    It's not often that the City Council convenes to

         20  address issues like this, and we consider it

         21  privileged.  If this opportunity was not utilized to

         22  take a comprehensive look at the van issue and fix

         23  it so that vans function as a significant part of

         24  the transportation network in this City then we

         25  would have missed a wonderful opportunity.
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          2                 We're not sitting here talking about

          3  guys who have no drivers' license or vans that are

          4  not insured.  We passed that. For those who want to

          5  do that, we join you in condemning them.

          6                 We want favorable legislation that

          7  will take a look at the manifests which is required

          8  to list 13 names and addresses on a piece of paper

          9  for every trip you take.  We think the Council

         10  should take a look at that Local Law 115.  We think

         11  the Council should take a look at the bus route

         12  prohibition maintaining its prohibition against bus

         13  stop activity, but certainly releasing the hold on

         14  activity on a bus route when every street in the

         15  City of New York is a bus route.

         16                 Here's what happens on a given day

         17   --  here's what happened this morning.  Licensed

         18  van driver had a CDL.  He had a HACK license.  He

         19  had his 19-A certification with his medical.  His

         20  van was insured in excess of what the City requires.

         21  His van was inspected.  He has a TLC sticker.  He

         22  was pulled for discharging a lady, not on a bus

         23  stop, on the corner of a street.  It's a bus route.

         24  After the Unit was finished with him.  The Unit got

         25  on his phone, called the MTA.  The MTA drove in
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          2  excess of 80 miles an hour from Jamaica Center to

          3  the location, and then issued additional tickets.

          4  The driver walked away with eight tickets. This is a

          5  legitimate van.

          6                 Implementing this bill as it is would

          7  simply mean that an orange van got eight tickets.

          8  That's all it would mean. It cannot be effective.

          9  Again, I cannot emphasize how important it is to

         10  have these hearings, but we should use them to make

         11  a difference.

         12                 You look at these men and women

         13  sitting here. During 9/11, they rallied to the City,

         14  many of them volunteering their services.  We were

         15  would good legitimate carriers then. During the MTA

         16  strike, we rallied to the aid of the City.  We were

         17  good drivers then.  During the cab strikes, we did

         18  that.  We were good then.  We were not orange, but

         19  we were good operators.  This opportunity should be

         20  utilized once and for all.  Once and for all say to

         21  those who want to do the right thing let's work with

         22  them, and then implement a new tolerant, sustained

         23  enforcement including seizure and forfeiture because

         24  the law is there for those who do not want to do the

         25  right thing.
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          2                 When you look at a color code, it

          3  will impact also the companies that provide charter

          4  and tour services.  We have multiple authorizations

          5  in many companies.  No one wants to be going on a

          6  tour to the Statue of Liberty in an orange van.  So

          7  my business on that end would die, or I'd have to

          8  purchase additional vehicles for my tour service,

          9  and our business does not allow us the resources to

         10  do that.

         11                 So again it's a brilliant idea, but I

         12  think this should be the icing on the cake after

         13  we've fixed all of those onerous pieces of

         14  legislation that the MTA advocated for to destroy

         15  us.  We are in a new era now, and we've proven

         16  ourselves transporting a hundred thousand people

         17  during the private bus strike, and not one incident

         18  except for when the MTA threw bottles on the vans.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Mr. Ricketts, I want

         20  to move one. I would like to focus the testimony

         21  today on the issue at hand, Intro. 430, on a bill

         22  that would make uniform the exterior color of

         23  authorized commuter vans for the express purposes of

         24  making it easily recognizable to law enforcement

         25  officers as well as members of the general public.
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          2                 I understand the issues that you have

          3  brought up, and because you brought them up I will

          4  state for the record what the general position of

          5  the Committee is.  We have discussed in the past

          6  that authorized commuter vans have an important role

          7  within the transportation system of New York City,

          8  that they serve an important role not withstanding

          9  the emergency crisis that you've mentioned during

         10  the strikes, during 9/11, that the authorized

         11  commuter vans stepped up to the plate.  Ninety- five

         12  percent of the time, we're talking about daily

         13  occurrences, daily riderships. They do serve an

         14  important purpose.  We try to make sure that that

         15  purpose is upheld.

         16                 With regard to the manifest

         17  requirement, with regard to the pre- arrangements,

         18  those are efforts that this Committee has made.

         19  There is a great deal of resistance to changing

         20  those kinds of requirements.  None the less, we are

         21  looking at that, and there are bills that have been

         22  proposed to address those issues.

         23                 With regard to the bus stop

         24  prohibition, that is not an area that as Chairman of

         25  this Committee I will go into.
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          2                 MR. RICKETTS: And I do agree with

          3  that, sir.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And that's because

          5  in the end buses are the primary mode of public

          6  transportation.  They must run, they must run on

          7  their routes, and they must run all throughout the

          8  day and night.  They don't have the luxury of

          9  stopping their operations when they only have a

         10  couple of riders on that public bus.  So we have to

         11  maintain that system.

         12                 We look forward to continuing this

         13  dialogue with you, but again this simple bill  --

         14  It's a very simple bill.  It's a half page bill  --

         15  seeks to make the exterior uniform so that members

         16  of the general public can find it easy and while

         17  some of you may say people don't care if they're

         18  riding in a black van, or a grey van, green van, or

         19  an orange van.  Of course, they don't care what

         20  color it is.  The point is that there are lots of

         21  people in New York City who do make a distinction

         22  between an illegal van operation and a properly

         23  authorized.

         24                 We will raise the public awareness

         25  about why it's far safer to be in an authorized
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          2  commuter van because they have proper insurance, the

          3  drivers have proper licensing, the vehicles are

          4  properly maintained, and that if they get into a van

          5  operation that is not authorized, that is illegal,

          6  then they put themselves and their family members at

          7  risk.  So it's not about what color it is.  Of

          8  course no one cares what color the van they're

          9  riding in is.  It's about allowing, empowering the

         10  consumer, the member of the general public to easily

         11  recognize what a properly authorized commuter van

         12  is.  That's the sole purpose behind this, and that

         13  no other vehicles would be permitted to use the same

         14  shade of orange or whatever color it ultimately

         15  winds up being.  It's not like orange is my favorite

         16  color, but the goal here is to make it easily

         17  recognizable for both law enforcement officers so

         18  that they can enforce against illegal operators, as

         19  well as the general public who  --  and I will say

         20  this of my constituents as well as many of my

         21  colleagues constituents  --  the general public who

         22  would far rather be in an authorized commuter van

         23  operation.  The problem right now is that they find

         24  it very difficult to distinguish a properly

         25  authorized one and an illegal operation.
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          2                 You are free to respond, Mr.

          3  Ricketts.

          4                 MR. RICKETTS: I appreciate all the

          5  comments you have made, Mr. Chairman, but I will go

          6  back to one of the points I made earlier.  Assuming

          7  this bill passes, and it's implemented, the general

          8  ridership will question well I thought you had a

          9  hearing and you're now legit.  They interpret any

         10  gesture from the Council to address issues as making

         11  us more legitimate.  However  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: More legitimate or

         13  illegitimate?

         14                 MR. RICKETTS: More legitimate because

         15  you're endorsing us now by saying okay, we're going

         16  to give you one color, but at the same time, I

         17  getting the same number of tickets as the illegal

         18  van.  It doesn't change anything at all except the

         19  color. You're right.  The general public doesn't

         20  care about the legal van or a color of a van.  They

         21  care about whether a van comes on time, and is

         22  getting them to their destination on time and

         23  safely.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The general public

         25  does care about legal operation.  There are plenty
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          2  of people and I don't question that.  There are

          3  plenty of people who just want to jump into a van,

          4  but there are also many people in the public.  We're

          5  not talking about day and night here.  There are

          6  many people in the public particularly those who are

          7  going to be taking their children on the vans with

          8  them, or their elderly parents on the vans with

          9  them. They seek to properly distinguish between a

         10  properly authorized commuter van operation and one

         11  that is operating illegally.

         12                 MR. RICKETTS: Mr. Chairman, every

         13  time the City Council or the TLC tightens the noose,

         14  the illegal van population increases.  You asked the

         15  question in the last hearing of the TLC why does a

         16  decrease in authorized vans and an increase in

         17  illegal vans.  They didn't answer accurately.  It's

         18  simple because when you tighten the noose on the

         19  legitimate carrier, they make the distinction and a

         20  decision to become illegal because it's cheaper,

         21  it's more productive, it's more cost- effective.  It

         22  is easier for an illegal gut to paint his van pink,

         23  purple, green or orange because he doesn't pay

         24  insurance.  He doesn't do 90- day certification.  He

         25  doesn't do inspection.  So he has no overhead
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          2  expense as the legitimate carriers have.  They are

          3  sitting out there now laughing at us, and when this

          4  is implemented, I guarantee you there will be a 20

          5  percent reduction in the number of legal vans. As

          6  the noose tightens, the illegal population

          7  increases.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well it's funny that

          9  you would characterize this as tightening the noose.

         10                 MR. RICKETTS: We feel that way at

         11  this moment.  We do.  We feel that way at the

         12  moment.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I think the general

         14  public, which is the primary reason why we would

         15  consider this bill, would find it an easier time,

         16  and that's exactly why we're doing it because it's

         17  for the general public, not just for the van

         18  operators.

         19                 As far as for the properly authorized

         20  commuter van operators, I would find it hard to

         21  understand why they would oppose a measure that

         22  allows law enforcement and the general public to

         23  more easily distinguish between a legal operation

         24  and an illegal operation.

         25                 MR. RICKETTS: Let me  --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: No.  Hold on for a

          3  second, Mr. Ricketts.  If in fact your contention is

          4  that just by this simple measure of requiring

          5  uniform exteriors that we would actually boost the

          6  number of illegal van operations and reduce the

          7  number of legal van operations then that almost

          8  suggests that there is no way of regulating this

          9  industry, and, therefore, we have to rethink the

         10  whole idea of commuter vans themselves because I

         11  find that to be logically inconsistent.

         12                 MR. RICKETTS: Mr. Chairman, let me

         13  just reiterate that for so long, the legitimate

         14  carriers have been managed under Local Law 115.

         15  Only recently, the TLC asked us to change the signs

         16  on the vehicles by putting the name of the company,

         17  the name and address of the owner of the van and the

         18  authorization number.  That was a financial burden

         19  to many.  Today, it has not changed the landscape of

         20  the business.  The illegals are working side- by-

         21  side with the legitimate carriers even though the

         22  cops can visibly see a name of an operator and a

         23  name of a company on that vehicle.  We have to admit

         24  that the enforcement agency has not gotten to the

         25  point yet where they want to distinguish between
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          2  legal and illegal vans.  They have not gotten to

          3  that point yet.  They're enforcing against vans in

          4  general, and Mr. Chairman, I drive a van.  I know

          5  what it is.  I have a number of vans on the street,

          6  every vehicle, every driver licensed as required and

          7  beyond.  What's the reason for a driver getting 15

          8  or 18 tickets?  No reason.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: A lot of these

         10  arguments  --  I want to move on because there's

         11  just not enough logical consistency that I'd like to

         12  hear.  The law enforcement  --  There are different

         13  agencies responsible for this between the TLC and

         14  the DOT.  Those agents generally knows the rules a

         15  little better.  The community precinct police

         16  officers generally don't know the laws as well, as

         17  much in detail, and so we try to make it easier for

         18  these officers to enforce the law, which is what you

         19  want.

         20                 But you also complained that legal,

         21  properly authorized commuter van operators are

         22  getting lots and lots of tickets and implying that

         23  illegal van operators aren't getting as many if not

         24  more tickets.  I'm sure we'll hear from some of the

         25  operators or van companies who don't have  --  Well
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          2  we may not hear from them in a public hearing, but I

          3  hear from them lots in private meetings that they've

          4  requested with me and my office.  So they're getting

          5  plenty of tickets, and there are lots of enforcement

          6  actions being taken against illegal operators.

          7                 I'm going to read Commissioner Daus'

          8  testimony into the record in a little while.  The

          9  TLC will testify, and as they testified last year,

         10  that they conduct a great deal of enforcement action

         11  against illegal van operations.  In fact, it was

         12  part of Commissioner Daus' testimony last year,

         13  roughly, exactly a year ago, that we came up with

         14  this idea to make it easier for all of the law

         15  enforcement officers and the general public to

         16  distinguish between legal and illegal van operators.

         17                 Let me turn to the next witness.

         18  Would that be Carmen Grant?

         19                 MS. GRANT: Good morning, Mr.

         20  Chairman.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Good morning, Ms.

         22  Grant.

         23                 MS. GRANT: Good morning.  I am a van

         24  operator.  I've been driving vans for the past 15

         25  years.  I'm a single mother of five kids, and I've
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          2  been to several of these meetings.  So I'm aware of

          3  this.

          4                 Anyway, my point is the changing of

          5  the color of the vans.  I don't think it will make

          6  that difference with the color changing because if

          7  there is an illegal van out there and you put us in

          8  orange, all they got to do is go to their body man

          9  and change the orange also since orange is the color

         10  for the legal vans.

         11                 I heard earlier you spoke to the

         12  gentlemen about the local precincts don't know an

         13  illegal from legal vans.  They do know.  In our

         14  areas, 105, 113, 103 Precincts, those officers know

         15  legal difference from illegal.  Number one, the

         16  license plates. The license plates tell them.

         17  Number two, the signs on the vans, and number three

         18  on the windshield of the vans we have all the signs

         19  for the legal vans which the illegal van does not

         20  have.  I for one wish I work very hard and rough

         21  getting out of bed at 5:00 in the mornings just

         22  credit a van in '06.  I didn't even want silver, but

         23  that's the color they made for 2006, silver, and I

         24  had a green one before which I wanted to fix it up

         25  and paint it over and when I went to the body shop
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          2  it was $3,500, the charge to do the whole van over.

          3  As a single mother struggling with my kids, and a

          4  little ten year old right now, there is no way I

          5  could afford to paint over my van to orange.

          6                 Number one, the color is something

          7  else.  Orange, it's way out of line for us.  It's

          8  not like they said white or blue or red, which a lot

          9  of people have white vans, a lot of red, a lot of

         10  blue, you know those colors.  Ford would never

         11  start, or have coming up, let's make all orange Ford

         12  vans.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well the purpose, as

         14  I'm sure most people understand, for orange is

         15  because there needs to be a color that really no one

         16  would want their own van to be the same color of.

         17  We can't make it black or white because, exactly as

         18  you stated, there are lots of people who would want

         19  to use that color. So it would be a color that would

         20  be reserved for authorized commuter vans and that no

         21  one else would be able to use that color.

         22                 MS. GRANT: But, on the same hand, I

         23  could go illegal now and change mine to orange.  The

         24  cop sees me going.  The cop would say there goes a

         25  legal van.  What's the difference?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That's a good point,

          3  but the way in which the TLC will enforce that, and

          4  the police officers, would be the penalties would be

          5  far more for someone who actually painted their

          6  vehicle the same color and hue as that of an

          7  authorized commuter van, much the same way that we

          8  do not see people painting their cars bright yellow,

          9  the same shade and hue of yellow taxi cabs because

         10  it is prohibited, and that people  --  because it

         11  would be the same distinction as yellow cabs, orange

         12  or whatever color people like, that's not a common

         13  color for authorized commuter vans.  It's the same

         14  principle.

         15                 MS. GRANT: It's not, because I saw a

         16  lot of yellow cars the same color as the taxi cabs

         17  out there on the street and they are not taxi cabs,

         18  but we're sticking with the vans.

         19                 I'm a legal van.  Say I am an illegal

         20  van  --  I'm not really, but say I am an illegal

         21  van, Mr. Ricketts is a legal van, and since he's not

         22  going to get stopped for having an orange van, I'm

         23  going to go orange too.

         24                 If the color was to change to another

         25  color away from orange because we wouldn't go for
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          2  that.  If it was to change to another color, what

          3  would we get other than to have the color code?

          4  What comes with us for us legal vans?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well first of all,

          6  the estimate that you received of $3,500 to paint

          7  your van  --  I could almost give you some referrals

          8  of places that would do it for far, far cheaper than

          9  that.  So the cost impact to imply that it would be

         10  a $3,500 burden for each van I think that's probably

         11  very much on the high side.

         12                 The idea that the illegal vans would

         13  simply paint their colors the same way, that is

         14  something that weakens the intent of this bill.

         15  There is no question about it.  If you're really

         16  thinking that people are going to go out and paint

         17  their illegal vans the same color then that would

         18  absolutely make this bill ineffective.  It's remains

         19  to be seen where that would actually be done

         20  because, again, the same kind of system and

         21  regulations exist for authorized taxi cabs.

         22                 Now if the legal van operators really

         23  think that this doesn't help them, then you know at

         24  some point we won't need to proceed, but on the one

         25  hand, we have an authorized commuter van industry
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          2  that is still growing in this City and complaining

          3  about the illegal van operations, and so we try to

          4  make certain rules that will help the legal van

          5  operators because in the end, they help our

          6  residents, our constituents.  If you really don't

          7  think that this helps the legal van operators, then

          8  there's no real compelling reason to go forth.  It's

          9  just that last year when Chairman Daus sat before us

         10  in his testimony it did indicate that members of the

         11  general public found it difficult to distinguish

         12  between real vans and illegal operations, and the

         13  same thing for some of the local officers.  Let's

         14  move on to  --

         15                 MS. GRANT: But Mr. Chairman, you

         16  didn't answer my question.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: What's the question?

         18                 MS. GRANT: I asked you what would we

         19  get changing the van color?  What would come with it

         20  for us?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: This is not a give

         22  or take meeting that we're having here.  This is a

         23  piece of legislation that we consider as members of

         24  the Council for the primary benefit of our

         25  constituents and residents.  To the extent that you
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          2  want something that you get in exchange for

          3  supporting this, I mean that is not our objective

          4  here.

          5                 MS. GRANT: I want to ask you one

          6  question.  I heard just now in your statement you

          7  tried to say like you would have somebody cheaper,

          8  far cheaper than $3,500.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes.

         10                 MS. GRANT: Oh, so this is like to get

         11  another person the business making money off us.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: No that's absolutely

         13  not true. Even Mr. Ricketts testified that the cost

         14  impact is $1,500 to $2,000.  So Mr. Ricketts knows

         15  someone that could do it better or cheaper than what

         16  you say.  I'm sure that people in this room will

         17  know that you can get a van painted for a lot less

         18  than $3,500 dollars.  I know of no specific

         19  business, but I'm sure you can go out there and look

         20  in the phone book.

         21                 MS. GRANT: Okay.  If he was to change

         22  it to white -

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: You can't change it

         24  to white.

         25                 MS. GRANT: I mean if you want to
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          2  change it to another color away from orange, I guess

          3  I would have to go out of business, or maybe you

          4  would paint it for me because I cannot afford it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  Mr. Henry.

          6                 MR. HENRY: Yes.  Good morning, Mr.

          7  Chairman and the board.  I am White Sands

          8  Transportation, Anthony Henry, and I disapprove of

          9  the color of the van so they're a target to the

         10  commuter vans was always legal and still legal.  All

         11  the commuter vans that we have on the boulevard

         12  right now is (sic) legal vans with proper insurance,

         13  the license, the HACK license, the safety commuter

         14  DOT and they are article 19A.

         15                 Now this color code of the van, it's

         16  only for the police to target us more.  Number one,

         17  we're not getting rid of the illegal van.  We cannot

         18  get rid of illegal vans because everybody has to

         19  survive in New York City.  But if you force right

         20  now in changing the color of the vans, it would only

         21  bring more illegal vans more on the road because the

         22  real deal is the enforcement targeting the vans at

         23  the moment.  Right now all the vans have proper

         24  documentation on the van right now, and like Mr.

         25  Ricketts said before, we're getting 15, 12, up to 14
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          2  tickets.  When enforcement come on the road, all

          3  illegal vans disappear, leaving all the legal vans

          4  as wider targets to nail to the ground.  So changing

          5  the color code of the van does not make a big

          6  difference in the commuter van industry.

          7                 I don't mind the color code.  It's

          8  fine with me. What I do mind is number one, target.

          9  If you're having lunch on the corner with a

         10  passenger in that area, the cops pass by, and when

         11  they stop by here's a van.  They give him some

         12  ticket.  That's what a target would be with a color

         13  code.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So you're basically

         15  saying that you don't want even the legal vans to

         16  have an exterior that's recognizable from far away

         17  because that's just going to attract tickets.  I

         18  mean that's basically what you're saying.

         19                 MR. HENRY: That's what I'm going to

         20  say.  Work on the illegal vans and not out there.

         21  Once enforcement comes out there, there's no illegal

         22  vans to nail.  We have to service our public because

         23  we have our documentation on the vans, so we work.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  The idea that

         25  making the authorized commuter van exteriors uniform
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          2  is going to bring more tickets onto the authorized

          3  commuter vans  --  I mean I just  -- If you're

          4  really believing that, then there's a huge problem

          5  with the Taxi and Limousine Commission in the way

          6  that they  --

          7                 MR. HENRY: It is a real target.  It

          8  is a real target because you're not educating those

          9  enforcers.  You're not educating those police guys.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Everybody in this

         11  City thinks that they get ticketed more than anybody

         12  else.  The illegal van operators will complain that

         13  they get tickets.  They just won't come to public

         14  hearing like this because they are not going to go

         15  on the record saying that you know my name is John

         16  Smith, and I operate an illegal van, but there's

         17  certainly a great deal of input from the operators,

         18  at least privately, to my office and our other

         19  colleagues that these illegal van operators, they

         20  get the tickets, and then they get their vehicles

         21  confiscated.

         22                 MR. HENRY: For how long?  They're

         23  back on road in two hours.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well so now your

         25  argument is that the vehicles get confiscated for
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          2  not long enough.  I mean the point is that you're

          3  just sitting here and saying that you don't like the

          4  tickets, but the reality is that the illegal van

          5  operators, they get, in my opinion, far more tickets

          6  than the legal van operators.

          7                 MR. HENRY: Let me correct on that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right, please.

          9                 MR. HENRY: Let me correct on that.

         10  We don't get as much tickets as the illegals, we get

         11  more than them.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: How do you know

         13  that?  Just give me an example.  I'm trying to

         14  understand this better.

         15                 MR. HENRY: Okay.  When I didn't have

         16  my TLC sticker on the van, I was towed away and got

         17  16 tickets.  Okay?  I checked it out with a friend

         18  of mine, he's a co- worker of mine, didn't have

         19  straight plates and only got five tickets and got

         20  his vehicle towed away.  Now do the mathematics.  I

         21  have a DOT van.  The only thing that's missing off

         22  the van is a TLC sticker expired, and I got 16 --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Then let me ask you

         24  then  --

         25                 MR. HENRY: And towed.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Then why are you

          3  properly authorized?

          4                 MR. HENRY: The City give us  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: If your friend is

          6  operating an illegal van and according to your

          7  testimony he's having a much easier time.

          8                 MR. HENRY: Exactly.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well then why are

         10  any of you properly authorized?

         11                 MR. RICKETTS: That's why the numbers

         12  decrease.  The numbers of the legal vans decrease

         13  when you tighten the noose, and the number of the

         14  illegal increases because it's more lucrative. They

         15  have no overhead expense.  They don't have to come

         16  to the TLC, and they go and play dominos when there

         17  is enforcement.  These men and women have to pay

         18  insurance, have to pay mortgages on their vans, and

         19  they have to service the public.  Therefore, they

         20  have to stay on the road because they are a

         21  legitimate transportation entity.  That's the

         22  reality of that, and we're saying this bill is a

         23  wonderful bill, but it should be the icing on the

         24  cake after we've solved some of the problems with

         25  Local Law 115.
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          2                 I don't want anyone to misconstrue.

          3  I think you should enforce.  You should tow vehicles

          4  for going into bus stops, legal or illegal.  They

          5  should be towed.  However, there should be some

          6  discretion on the bus route when we live in urban

          7  America where every street is a bus route.  There

          8  should be some  --  And this bill is a good bill,

          9  but it should be coupled with another bill that

         10  addresses some of the onerous provisions.  Then you

         11  will see the number of illegal vans decrease, and

         12  the number of legal vans increase.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I don't get what

         14  you're saying.  I mean you keep saying that this is

         15  a good bill, but it should be icing on the cake.

         16                 MR. RICKETTS: On its own, it's

         17  onerous and it doesn't solve the problem.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Wait.  I'm sorry.

         19  Say that again. Oh you said on its own.

         20                 MR. RICKETTS: On its own, yes.  It

         21  has to be coupled with something else.  She asked

         22  the question what do we get.  I think what she was

         23  getting to is that you're going to change our colors

         24  and we're going to look good, but tomorrow morning

         25  is business as usual with enforcement.  An employee
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          2  of City Hall  --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So give me an

          4  example.  I mean you did give me a few examples of

          5  the manifest requirement, the pre arrangement

          6  requirement.  I mean what you're saying really is

          7  you want to be able to operate on the bus route.

          8                 MR. RICKETTS: On the bus route, not

          9  in the bus stop.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That's not going to

         11  happen any time soon, but the manifest and

         12  prearrangement, that's something that as far as I

         13  know from the TLC, Matt Daus has testified that they

         14  don't enforce those two issues.

         15                 MR. RICKETTS: Not true.  Not true.

         16  Absolutely not true.  Absolutely not true.  One

         17  manifest ticket goes to the owner, one manifest

         18  ticket to the driver.  One prearrangement ticket to

         19  the owner, one prearrangement to the driver.  One

         20  bus route violation to the owner, one bus route

         21  violation to the driver, and that's how you get 12

         22  tickets.  Testimony is one thing.  Being in the

         23  streets and seeing it live is another.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

         25                 MR. RICKETTS: Mr. Chairman, we would
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          2  look so good. I once ran a fleet of red vans, Mr.

          3  Chairman.  It was good for my business on the

          4  charter side of it.  It was good, and it looks good,

          5  but this should be the last thing we do after we

          6  solve some of these problems.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.  Mr.

          8  Ricketts, I want to thank you and your colleagues

          9  for testifying.  You are certainly a recognized

         10  pioneer in this industry, and we look forward to

         11  getting more input from you.

         12                 MR. RICKETTS: Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  Our next

         14  panel consisting of Chyrel Halli, Bickles Van Lines,

         15  Andre Narcisse and Fatai Lasisi.  Come on up.  Well

         16  those are rather unique witnesses we have there.

         17                 MS. HALL: They're my friends.  They

         18  wanted to be on camera.  So I brought them.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay, please

         20  proceed.

         21                 MS. HALL: Good day.  My name is

         22  Chyrel Hall, and I am an attorney.  I represent

         23  Bickles Van Lines.  Bickles in the Jamaican culture

         24  means food.  So I may not be very general  --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sorry, Ms. Hall.  I
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          2  was remiss once again.  I would like to recognize

          3  the presence of Council Member Darlene Mealy from

          4  Brooklyn.  Please proceed, Ms. Hall.

          5                 MS. HALL: Okay.  Welcome.  The Chair,

          6  Board Members, thank you for your invite.  Once

          7  again, my name is Chyrel Hall. I'm an attorney.  I

          8  practice in Rosedale, Queens, and I represent

          9  Bickles Van Lines.

         10                 We have a few concerns, but before I

         11  proceed I just want to make mention that Mr.

         12  Ricketts and myself has gone way back in terms of

         13  the business of the dollar van and I recognize a lot

         14  of his points.  I think they are important.  I

         15  believe he is correct that in part we do color code

         16  and make it easier for us to address the color issue

         17  rather than some of the important and pertinent

         18  issues that the vans are having presently in New

         19  York.

         20                 Also, I would like to say the dollar

         21  vans, which I speak on behalf of, also do a

         22  significant job in terms of putting people in

         23  position in terms of voting, in terms of

         24  representation Eastern Park Parade, the Caribbean

         25  Day Parade, and it carries with it the Caribbean
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          2  community spirit.  I guess with that said, I'm going

          3  to segue directly into Bickles Vans' concerns.

          4                 One, we love the idea of the color

          5  code.  I'm Caribbean.  I'm used to the prep

          6  school/uniformed community.  I believe if we go in

          7  this route, it will be good for the commuter vans,

          8  all of commuter vans in New York whether that be the

          9  ones started by the Chinese or the Jamaicans and the

         10  others who are coming in, or are presently in the

         11  van game.

         12                 My concern too is color.  I notice

         13  the color of New York's flag has orange in it.  I

         14  don't know what the decision was behind the color.

         15  I know from my own personal experience, orange is

         16  the color of sacrifice, and I don't know if this

         17  community  -- Well I guess few will probably state

         18  that they have not sacrificed in terms of the

         19  struggles they've undergone for over two decades. So

         20  since we here to talk about color, the question is

         21  why the color.  You mention it was chosen because

         22  you want to make it bright.  Why not in the spirit

         23  of where we are going environmental, make it green,

         24  neon green?  I mean that's where we are going as a

         25  community in terms of being environmentally
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          2  friendly, in terms of clean air, or make it orange

          3  on the green.  Golf, posh, orange on the green, and

          4  make them neon.

          5                 I like uniformity, but I also like

          6  diversity.  What if the Chinese community wants to

          7  have an orange van and also put a symbol of the

          8  Chinese American community.  Shouldn't we extend

          9  some amount of individuality along with this color?

         10  You know? What if they want to put the Chinese flag

         11  there, or something that symbolizes Chinatown, or

         12  something that is symbolically important to New York

         13  that the Chinese have contributed?

         14                 These are my concerns.  Once again, I

         15  love the uniformity, but is there going to be any

         16  room for individuality also, a balance like we have

         17  in New York?

         18                 Number two, Bickles Van Lines is

         19  happy about the color because we believe

         20  specifically that this will cause us to have a

         21  greater market share in transportation.  When the

         22  illegals are out, the legals will probably make more

         23  money, and this is where I defer with Hector

         24  Ricketts, though we go way back, on this point of

         25   --  He mentioned legal vans will suffer more and
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          2  illegal vans will be happy and they're smiling.  I

          3  beg to differ.  If we're legit and we have a color

          4  and New York City is doing what they're supposed to

          5  do then I don't see why a color wouldn't be good for

          6  New York, good for the van business and good, most

          7  importantly, for the dollar van business.

          8                 I work in the local community.  So I

          9  have to always mention the history or the colloquial

         10  names in which we use.  It's the commuter van.  The

         11  history of it is the dollar van.

         12                 So yes, I believe it's going to be

         13  good for us.  I believe the legitimate people will

         14  make more money, but my concern is, in terms of New

         15  York and impacting New York and employment, what

         16  will become of the illegal people and where will

         17  they go? Will it increase crime in New York, one?

         18  Two, will it eventually put pressure on the legal

         19  vans, as Hector's and Bickles Van Lines, in terms of

         20  harassment for jobs and other things because now

         21  this market has been displaced?  That's a legitimate

         22  concern I want the Committee to address.

         23                 In addition, one of Ricketts' party

         24  mentioned what will we get from it.  There is a cost

         25  involved and the bottom line is going to be money.
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          2  As pretty as I talk about how posh we're going to

          3  be, and how nice, and my hope is that we have a nice

          4  color that represents the spirit of the Chinese, the

          5  Jamaicans, and everybody who came, saw and conquered

          6  New York in terms of making an impact in

          7  transportation, but the cost again, will there be

          8   -- Sweeten the pot a little bit.  Why not give them

          9  some tax breaks? If you don't want to enforce

         10  directly and upfront, why not through taxes?  Allow

         11  the New York commuter vans be able to claim

         12  something, get something back.  Sacrifice, give them

         13  something for it to give them green.

         14                 Additionally, we mentioned another

         15  point I'm going to build on.  She mentioned who is

         16  going to get the contract.  It's money again.  If

         17  we're going to go orange, and we're going to specify

         18  a particular color, I presume the City is going to

         19  choose the color that is not common as you said, and

         20  that it probably can franchise or do something with.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Let's move on. I

         22  want to hear from the other witnesses also.  I mean

         23  there is nothing magic about orange.  It's just

         24  about finding a color that is not in wide use so

         25  there should be some distinction between the
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          2  authorized legal vans and all other vans.

          3                 As far as who would paint them, I

          4  mean everyone should  -- Just like the yellow cabs,

          5  there's no City franchise that paints yellow cabs.

          6  There are lots of places that can paint that

          7  particular shade of yellow.  It would be available

          8  generally.  So you just go find the nearest garage

          9  that could do that kind of paint job.  That's not a

         10  very complicated thing.

         11                 MS. HALL: Okay.  In light of this,

         12  then I will forced to support Mr. Ricketts that how

         13  are you going to distinguish then once more between

         14  legal and illegal?  And the bottom line of this,

         15  isn't this just a nice color code or easy way to

         16  just deal with or pretend that we're addressing this

         17  issue of transportation because it isn't legitimate?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I do value  --  I

         19  mean this is why we have this kind of public

         20  hearing.  If the legal van operators, the properly

         21  authorized operators, really believe that all of the

         22  illegal operators would then paint their vans the

         23  same color, then that is a very strong argument

         24  against the effectiveness of this bill.  So if that

         25  truly is the opinion of the legal van operators,

                                                            54

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  then I will certainly take that to heart.

          3                 MS. HALL: Okay.  In painting the

          4  color orange, did you also put attached to the bill

          5  a grant that would be given perhaps, or a time

          6  period for the vans who are in operation already?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes, of course.

          8  Sure.  There would be some kind of a phase- in

          9  period, a way to graduate this.  It wouldn't be

         10  immediately, tomorrow you'd have to do that.

         11                 MS. HALL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

         12  and thank you  --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And I really

         14  appreciate your testimony, Ms. Hall.

         15                 We've been joined by Council Member

         16  Daniel Garodnick from Manhattan.  Thanks for joining

         17  us.

         18                 Mr. Lasisi.

         19                 MR. LASISI: Yes.  Ladies and

         20  gentlemen, my name is Fatai Lasisi, and I am the

         21  owner of City Link.  The color, you can talk  --

         22  First of first, I hear people talking about dollar

         23  van. Dollar van was way, way back when we doesn't

         24  (sic) have DOT and all that stuff that we would call

         25  it dollar van, but not it's commuter, a little
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          2  disrespect on the vans.  We are not dollar van no

          3  more, we are commuter vans.  We operate legally, and

          4  then this color bothers me, Mr. Chairman because you

          5  see I would like you to check your records on the

          6  TLC.  I'm in the commuter van legal.  I'm in a

          7  commuter licensed van.  We have out there  --  It's

          8  not too many. It's not too many.  Illegal van is

          9  more than legal vans, and if you color us, and we

         10  have suffered already.  We the only ones who suffer.

         11    We trying to make a living.  We suffer already

         12  enough. When the police come out they don't target

         13  illegal van, they target us.  We the ones getting

         14  paid and now we fight insurance, we fighting the

         15  ticket, parking ticket, we have to pay the work on

         16  the vehicle, the driver is there.  I don't know what

         17  to do again, you know.  I don't what to do because

         18  if you change the color, you doesn't do anything out

         19  there.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  I got it.

         21                 MR. LASISI: Mr. Chairman, I want you

         22  to check and if you can call us on a meeting with a

         23  few of us can tell you how much we make a day.  If

         24  we tell you how much we make a day, it will help us

         25  consider what to do next.  When you have enough law
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          2  to badly enforce, this color, it doesn't work.  It

          3  won't work.  You'll have your part to change it, but

          4  it won't work because it's going to be still illegal

          5  van out there.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  Mr. Narcisse.

          7                 MR. LASISI: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well I'm talking

          9  about Andre.  This looks like Narcisse.  Maybe I'm

         10  not reading it correctly.

         11                 MR. NARCISSE: Yes, it's greek.  It's

         12  Narcisse.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Narcisse.  Please

         14  proceed.

         15                 MR. NARCISSE: Yes, good morning,

         16  Chairman and Committee of the board.  I'm referenced

         17  to Magic Touch Transportation, and I'm for the color

         18  code.  I'm for the color code.  First and foremost,

         19  I would like to thank the entire Council for

         20  inviting me to this meeting, and as far as what's

         21  going to happen, there's a lot of topic that was

         22  mentioned before earlier. Mr. Hector Ricketts had

         23  brought up some very crucial items pertaining to

         24  things that has happened within the van community,

         25  and a lot of things need to be looked into and some
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          2  things need to be investigated pertaining to what

          3  goes on outside in our community.

          4                 As far as why I would support the

          5  color code first, the legal van could be easily

          6  identified by the public and law enforcement which

          7  is true.  The commuter van service industry needs to

          8  be taken seriously by the company owners, drivers

          9  and the public as a legitimate business and not as a

         10  hustle.  Third designated start and stop end points

         11  from Flatbush to Utica, because I'm from the

         12  Brooklyn area, should be assigned to commuter vans

         13  pick- up and drop- off also in traffic areas such as

         14  Atlantic Avenue.  Those things we don't have.

         15  Number four, the driver is properly identified, can

         16  improve public safety and bring back value to the

         17  van industry.  So that would be a good thing.

         18                 Last statement.  I believe change

         19  doesn't happen overnight, but working together this

         20  can benefit us and the public in many ways once we

         21  work together.  So that would be a good thing for

         22  the color code, but Ms. Chyrel Hall was saying

         23  earlier as far as okay it'll be a good thing, but

         24  what's the outcome of this further on down the line

         25  because we have to see what's going to happen.  I
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          2  mean the color code is a beautiful thing.  I'm not

          3  against it, but what's going to happen?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well what do you

          5  mean what's going to happen?  Do you also think that

          6  all the illegal vans would adopt the same color too?

          7                 MR. NARCISSE: No, I don't think so

          8  because if you read in the certification of the

          9  letter that you sent here to me also, it states that

         10  there will be a specific color that will be chosen

         11  to put on those legal vans.  Correct?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes, but I mean I

         13  think many of  --

         14                 MR. NARCISSE: It won't be just a

         15  regular orange.  It will be a significant orange.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That's correct.

         17  Well orange is orange.

         18                 MR. NARCISSE: Well everybody's orange

         19  is orange  --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Right.  I mean there

         21  will be a specific shade of orange, or you know it

         22  could be green.  I mean I'm not opposed to green.

         23  It could be, just as long as it's not something that

         24  is widely in use by the general public.  But the

         25  question is, and this seems to be the most relevant
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          2  question today, will the illegal operators paint

          3  their vans the same color and hue also?  Some of the

          4  legal van operators seem to think that yes. That's

          5  just going to happen.  That would really render this

          6  ineffective because the whole point of the color is

          7  to allow the general public and law enforcement

          8  officers to easily distinguish between an authorized

          9  van and an illegal operation.

         10                 MR. NARCISSE: Just like the yellow

         11  cabs, correct?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Just like the yellow

         13  cabs.  I know the lady earlier mentioned that there

         14  are plenty of cars painted the same hue as the

         15  yellow cabs.  Actually, no.  They are very rare to

         16  see.  So the question is will the illegal vans paint

         17  the same color orange?  I'm not sure what the answer

         18  to that is.  We figure that if it can be done for

         19  the yellow cabs, and done effectively, then there

         20  shouldn't be a reason why it would not be effective

         21  for the legal commuter van industry, but if the

         22  legal owners really think that it wouldn't work,

         23  then maybe we don't do this.

         24                 MR. NARCISSE: Well, it specified also

         25  that  --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We'll come back to

          3  you, Mr. Lasisi.

          4                 MR. NARCISSE: You specified again

          5  also, Mr. Chairman, that as far as the color change

          6  you will have adequate enforcement also brought out

          7  to make sure that those things are done properly.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That's correct.

          9  Again, that is one of the primary purposes behind

         10  this bill to allow the officers to easily

         11  distinguish between a legal operation and an illegal

         12  one, but if on the other hand, people who are expert

         13  in this industry, as all of you are, really believe

         14  that all of the illegal operations would then paint

         15  their vans the same way then that would not make it

         16  easier for law enforcement to enforce against the

         17  illegals.  So that is really a central question.

         18  Would the illegal operators just go ahead and paint

         19  their vans the same color? There's a little bit  --

         20  Mr. Lasisi, you seem to think so.  Please use the

         21  mic.

         22                 MR. LASISI: Chairman, you compare us

         23  with yellow cab saying it's going to be painted just

         24  like the yellow cab.  We are not paint like the

         25  yellow cab.  We have a route, and we don't even have
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          2  a van stop for this route.  If you paint us the

          3  orange, we're still going to run the side streets

          4  just the same way.  So what's the difference?  It

          5  makes no difference.  We're still going to be

          6  running the side street.  We don't pick up on bus

          7  route.  We pick up on side street.  We're still

          8  going to be running.  If you can make a van stop for

          9  us, that will look good, but no van stop, we're

         10  still going to be running.  Just like when the

         11  police come, we go to the side street to pick up

         12  everywhere all over the place.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: In fact, there are

         14  van stops. There are not van stops for every single

         15  authorized commuter van, but for many of the

         16  authorized van companies, there are van stops --

         17                 MR. LASISI: One van stop.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  --  Specially

         19  designated  --  No, there are more.  One van stop,

         20  where?  In the City?  No, there are more.

         21                 MR. LASISI: Where I'm at in Jamaica,

         22  there is only one van stop which is by Jamaica.

         23  That's it.  When you pick up from there, you have to

         24  drop off.  When you drop off, that's when the police

         25  get us.  Anywhere you drop off, they give you a
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          2  ticket. Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.  Let me

          4  turn it over to Council Member Darlene Mealy.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Yes, I just

          6  wanted to ask what are you meaning will not work?

          7  Could you explain that?  Maybe I didn't understand

          8  what you said.  You're the only one who said it will

          9  not work, if you paint all the cabs the same color

         10  or orange.

         11                 MR. LASISI: I won't say it won't

         12  work.  It will work, if you force it.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Why?

         14                 MR. LASISI: It will work, if you

         15  force it.  If you enforce it  --  Law enforcement is

         16  out there to enforce it, but if they're not there we

         17  only cab with the orange color, we don't make

         18  nothing.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Okay, I just

         20   --

         21                 MR. LASISI: We're going to be out of

         22  business soon.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: I understand

         24  that, but what I'm thinking about majority, it is

         25  about dollars and cents, and with the color of
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          2  orange, enforcement has to be set in place first. We

          3  haven't really addressed why you are getting all the

          4  tickets, and why the police are just  --  Really the

          5  legal ones and the illegal ones, they are being

          6  saturated with getting tickets period. Why?  Because

          7  they feel that you taking revenue from MTA.  So

          8  therefore, I feel  --  I'm just throwing this out.

          9  Just like they're trying to push taxi cab stands in

         10  Brooklyn, or in all five boroughs, why not have more

         11  taxi stands in the district like Flatbush to

         12  Atlantic Avenue?  And once we do that then we can

         13  really start seeing where the illegal or legal are.

         14                 Chair, I have to say if we do get it

         15  painted, it has to be a certain color.  I went for a

         16  car one time, and I wanted Taranado Red.  I needed

         17  Taranado Red.  I could not find that color. So

         18  therefore, if we don't get a specific color orange,

         19  and it's only legally just for the van service, you

         20  will get the illegal vans painting their vans and

         21  taking the revenue from you period. Therefore, it

         22  should be something in place if someone does use

         23  this color that is really specifically for the vans,

         24  it should be a penalty.  If there's no penalty and

         25  no enforcement in regards to it, we will have the
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          2  same business as usual.  I hope we can start

          3  advancing because sooner or later we have to get

          4  organized enough that the police know who the legal

          5  vans, and the police already know which ones are

          6  illegal.  If the legals are getting more tickets

          7  than the illegals, something is wrong.

          8                 MR. LASISI: Okay.  Okay.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: So we have to

         10  really decide that, Chairman.  I feel that that

         11  should be in place first before we just haphazardly

         12  just say let's color the vans.

         13                 MR. LASISI: Thank you.  Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Truthfully,

         15  they will  --  and I just heard that they could go

         16  to any shop and paint the color orange.  That's not

         17  good enough.  That's not helping the industry

         18  whatsoever.  So I hope we could address this a

         19  little more further.

         20                 MR. LASISI: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.  I want

         22  to call up our next panel of witnesses.  We have to

         23  move on, but I just want to say also that the  --

         24  Well I'll save it for later.  Let me call up my next

         25  panel consisting of Winston Williams, Desmond West
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          2  and Michael Lee.  Mr. Williams, please proceed.

          3                 MR. WILLIAMS: Good morning, Council

          4  Members.  Thank you for having this meeting.  In

          5  regards to the color- coding of the commuter vans, I

          6  would like to say that I am all for it, but earlier

          7  speakers have told you that it's a very good thing

          8  to do providing that the Local Law 115 would be

          9  revised as far as the manifests, bus route and I

         10  would say other laws that are there that are

         11  stifling the business.

         12                 As far as the comments that were

         13  being made, the uprise, for instance, of more

         14  illegal vans copying and doing the vehicles the same

         15  color, I feel that that's something that is

         16  definitely going to be happening because from

         17  receiving this letter and making an announcement to

         18  the general public of the commuter guys that's out

         19  there, those are comments that came back from the

         20  them that they would wind up doing.

         21                 Also in regards to being able to

         22  identify the legal vans with this color code, there

         23  is a lot of enforcement out there whereas through

         24  TLC previous meetings back here they had stated that

         25  they have be doing enforcement and most of the
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          2  enforcement that was going on as far as summons that

          3  were being issued was mainly towards authorized vans

          4  from last year when that made that. There's about

          5  maybe 10,000 or 9,000 or 100 tickets issued and most

          6  of it was towards the legal vans.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Legal or illegal?

          8                 MR. WILLIAMS: Legal vans.  We're the

          9  ones that got most of the summonses.  With this

         10  being implemented that the vehicles are going to be

         11  now color- coded with the orange, it enables TLC now

         12  to identify which vehicles are out there.  Whereas

         13  when all the legal ones is operating along side the

         14  illegal ones, anytime enforcement comes out, most of

         15  the time, depending on how strong the enforcement

         16  is, the illegal ones will go to the side and don't

         17  work leaving us here now to continue working.  The

         18  officers don't come out to this, look and say okay,

         19  legal vans are running. Let them go back and

         20  continue the working they had doing.  They then stay

         21  out there and randomly start giving the authorized

         22  vans summonses for whatever reason they feel.

         23                 In certain communities that we travel

         24  through, on Flatbush for instance, which is the 63rd

         25  Precinct neighborhood, they have this assumption
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          2  that we're not supposed to transport people to the

          3  mall, which is Kings Plaza Mall.  We have been

          4  having problems with them whereas if we transport to

          5  the mall, we're dropping off right by the mall.

          6  This maybe a no standing zone or anything like that.

          7    They intimidate and come and give us parking

          8  tickets, and have even taken away our vehicle, even

          9  though we have all the required documents to be

         10  transporting the people on to the mall.

         11                 Having a color code, like I said, is

         12  good because it will let the public identify which

         13  van is operating legally, but at the same time, when

         14  the enforcement is coming and you're in a vehicle

         15  and they are stopping you, you're going let's say to

         16  work or where ever you're going.  A rider is going

         17  to work or school or where ever they are going to,

         18  and an officer then stops you.  They are preventing

         19  you now from continuing legally to transport the

         20  people where they are going.  The general public now

         21  that's in that van will look and say they thought we

         22  were authorized to transport people.  When officers

         23  stopping you and they're in the vehicle 15 minutes,

         24  that assumption goes across that you're not

         25  operating legally or you're not supposed to be doing
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          2  that.  So even with a color code, it will wind up

          3  still with the enforcement let it look like we're

          4  not doing what we're supposed to be doing which is

          5  putting us in the same category as the unauthorized

          6  van that will be still there running up and down the

          7  same way.

          8                 Again, the expense is another thing

          9  on the company owners or the individuals that own a

         10  vehicle.  Now they have to go and change their

         11  vehicles to this orange.  I have no problem with the

         12  color.  The part of the color that I'm looking at is

         13  that if your choice was to be orange which is

         14  similar to the taxi cab, the taxi cabs are allowed

         15  to randomly stop and pick up people anywhere within

         16  the City.  A commuter van files for authorization to

         17  transport people within a boundary, or within a

         18  community in a designated area, but yet we're still

         19  be enforced upon as if we're doing something

         20  illegal.  It just doesn't look right, enforcement

         21  wise, when they're enforcing on legal vans the way

         22  they're doing and not putting enforcement on the

         23  unauthorized that's doing the same as we're doing.

         24                 The expense, again, is on the owner,

         25  and it's added expenses towards the insurance,
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          2  everything else that's entitled for us to take care

          3  of to be running legal, and it's just a very hard

          4  burden to put on.  I do welcome it, but it's welcome

          5  being able to revise Local Law 115 because if you're

          6  still running out there working and you can't run on

          7  the bus route, you have to manifests like you're an

          8  airplane or something that you have to have the name

          9  and address of each individual rider that's in your

         10  vehicle, it doesn't make any sense.  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Williams.  Mr. West.

         13                 MR. WEST: Good morning, Council

         14  Members, co-workers. At the last meeting, the

         15  transportation meeting that we had there, Mr.

         16  Chairman, when Councilman Daus spoke, he stated

         17  specifically that there was 8,000 tickets issued

         18  throughout the City on vans through last year.  Of

         19  the 8,000 tickets that were issued, 7,200 tickets

         20  was issued to legal vans.  So that will show you

         21  that only the legal vans are being ticketed whenever

         22  we have an enforcement in place.  So if we are doing

         23  everything to be legal and when the enforcement is

         24  there that we assume that we are going to make some

         25  money and we have only been ticketed and then the
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          2  passengers were already on the van that was going to

          3  their destination, they're frustrated and get off

          4  the van to look for another van.  We also get

          5  another ticket for discharging that passenger that

          6  comes off the van.  So we're in a no win situation,

          7  but the color code is a very good thing, and I think

          8  we should color code the vans because it will be

          9  better for us.

         10                 The only thing with the color code is

         11  that the police officers when he come to make his

         12  enforcement, he says there goes an orange van.  I

         13  can give him three tickets before the day is done.

         14  That is our problem.  When the enforcement comes

         15  out, they pull you over, they say can I see your

         16  manifest.  Most drivers don't work with a manifest.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.  Well I

         18  appreciate that. What I wanted to say before was

         19  that a lot of times the enforcement agents are out

         20  there giving the tickets because there are also a

         21  fair number, a considerable number, of complaints

         22  against the van services from people in the

         23  community who don't ride these vans, but they

         24  certainly have concerns about the way in which

         25  they're operating within their communities.  That's
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          2  why a lot of times the officers are out there, and I

          3  know many of my colleagues are stuck in the budget

          4  briefings, but as you've heard from them before,

          5  people like Councilman Fidler, they have lots of

          6  problems with the van services.  The voice that is

          7  largely missing from this kind of hearing because

          8  that's the nature of this hearing, which is why we

          9  consider input from not only these hearing but

         10  directly from constituents, is that people in the

         11  communities, the residential communities, have a

         12  great deal of concern.  That's why the police

         13  officers and other enforcement agents are out there

         14  giving these tickets.

         15                 Let me turn the floor over to Michael

         16  Lee  --

         17                 MR. WEST: One second.  What I'm

         18  trying to say is the color code is good, but there's

         19  a drawback on it.  Why should we color code when we

         20  are going to be targeted, more targeted to be

         21  enforced by the Stead Bus Unit when it comes out?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well that argument

         23  actually  -- The question is why does anybody become

         24  a legally authorized commuter van?  I mean that's in

         25  effect what a lot of people are saying.  Why become
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          2  a legally authorized commuter van?  Why become

          3  authorized as opposed to just run the vans

          4  illegally?

          5                 MR. WEST: You see a lot of us when we

          6  were illegal, we visioned that by becoming legal

          7  we'll achieve what we set out to become.  We want to

          8  be a businessman.  We don't want to be a street

          9  hustler.  Now, what it's going to do when you do all

         10  of this is turn us right back to being a street

         11  hustler.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.  Thank you,

         13  Mr. West.  Mr. Lee.

         14                 MR. LEE: Hi.  Good morning  --  this

         15  is almost a good afternoon  --  members of the

         16  Transportation Committee, Council Members, and

         17  members of the press, ladies and gentlemen. My name

         18  is Michael Lee.  I am President of L & W Express Van

         19  Service Corp.  We currently service Flushing, Queens

         20  and Chinatown in Manhattan.  We have been servicing

         21  this area since 1988.  I have watched the industry

         22  grow to where we are today.

         23                 I am here to say that the new rules

         24  being proposed do not serve the best interest of the

         25  riding public or commuter van industry for the

                                                            73

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  following reasons.  Number one, the color orange can

          3  easily be confused with a school bus.  I do not want

          4  to see the children chasing after the commuter van

          5  that they confuse for their school bus.  Two, the

          6  cost of fixing existing vehicle will cost upwards of

          7  $3,000 dollars for repainting and new signage.

          8  Three, the cost of purchasing new vehicles and

          9  painting them would add up to $2,500 dollars.

         10                 According to the New York City TLC

         11  website there are currently 221 licensed commuter

         12  vans operating on the street of New York City.  The

         13  riding public of the industry will be much better

         14  serviced if the following was done.  Number one,

         15  better enforcement of driver licensing rule; number

         16  two, when operating on the street of New York City

         17  the riding public and industry will be much better

         18  served in the following  --  I'm sorry.  That's not

         19  number two. Number two is better enforcement of the

         20  vehicle licensing rule; number three, a quicker

         21  response to complaints against unlicensed, illegal

         22  vehicle, driver and illegal routes; number four,

         23  addressing the conflict between commuter vans

         24  operating along the bus route that exist on the

         25  major streets, for example, Flushing Main Street;
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          2  number five, providing a regular forum whereby the

          3  commuter base owner and the TLC can communicates

          4  with each other.

          5                 I would like to see the commuter van

          6  industry treated with more respect.  We provide a

          7  vital link in the daily transportation needed for

          8  thousands of the New York worker everyday.  Our

          9  ridership can identify our vehicle.  The pressing

         10  need in our industry is better, more consistent

         11  enforcement of commuter van rules not the addition

         12  of more expense.  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         14  Mr. Lee for taking part in this hearing.  Yes, we

         15  have questions from Council Member Mealy.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Could somebody

         17  explain to me what happens when you are pulled over

         18  by a police officer and then they find out you're a

         19  legal van service?

         20                 MR. WEST: Find out that you are an

         21  illegal van service?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: No you're

         23  legal.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Illegal.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: No, legal.  If
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          2  you're pulled over and the police mistake you for an

          3  illegal van, and you're legal, what procedure

          4  happens?

          5                 MR. WILLIAMS: Well it depends on what

          6  police agency that pulled you over because if it's a

          7  regular police that pulled you over, he'd probably

          8  give you a double parking ticket for pulling you

          9  over.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: But why?

         11  You're legal.

         12                 MR. WILLIAMS: He says you discharged

         13  or you probably picked up  --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: You're legal

         15  though.  Why are you getting a ticket?

         16                 MR. WILLIAMS: According to the New

         17  York State law, we are not supposed to pick up or

         18  discharge any passenger without pre- arrange.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: I know they

         20  should call you first.

         21                 MR. WILLIAMS: Right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: And tell you

         23  where they pick up, where they drop off.

         24                 MR. WILLIAMS: And where they drop

         25  off.  Right.  As long as  --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: So that should

          3  be changed.  We should start look  --  Is that

          4  realistic?  No.  --

          5                 MR. WILLIAMS: That's what we're

          6  talking about.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: So that's what

          8  everyone should start getting together and try to

          9  change that because we are not being real here.  I

         10  know I'm for the City, but if we are going to really

         11  build this industry up, we have to start addressing

         12  that because that's not going to really happen.  I

         13  don't believe anyone unless it's just a taxi stand

         14  that will call and say well come to my house, pick

         15  me up here or there.  With illegal vans or legal

         16  vans that is not going to happen with the drop- off,

         17  pick- up, discharge.  So let's start addressing

         18  that, and it's a problem.  I know exactly what

         19  you're talking about with the constituents have

         20  every right to be involved in this, but just because

         21  it's happening to someone's area we should always

         22  think about this still is industry.  With industry,

         23  as long as you're legal, you should be able to work.

         24    So once we address that because I'm still in awe.

         25  Imagine if you go and start a van pick- up on Park
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          2  Avenue.  They would take him away, but why everyone

          3  else can do it?  If the yellow cabs can come in

          4  Brooklyn and drop them off everywhere.  If you're

          5  legal, you should be able to go anywhere just as

          6  well, but you have to address that issue first with

          7     --  I can't remember the name of it now.  What is

          8  it?  The invoice?

          9                 MR. WILLIAMS: Local Law 115.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: No, I know that

         11  law.

         12                 MR. WILLIAMS: The manifest.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: The manifest.

         14  There you go. We have to change the manifest.

         15  That's one thing we should be addressing first, and

         16  then you can legalize everything and you wouldn't be

         17  intimidated.  You wouldn't be harassed because

         18  really you're being harassed.  Thank you.

         19                 MR. WEST: You see that manifest part

         20  is a part of that Local Law 115 along with the bus

         21  route and that's there that we have addressed

         22  previously.  We have put it out there on the table

         23  to see if they could vote on it or amend that law

         24  and nothing has come until they are looking at this

         25  here.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: So maybe later

          3  on we need to speak and see what we can do.

          4                 MR. WEST: Another thing I want to say

          5  about the color- coding, when you implement that

          6  now, there is a part in this that you're saying that

          7  there will be enforcement through TLC towards that.

          8  Now the thing that I gather from that is that there

          9  are people within my company that have different

         10  color vans.  When this is implemented now, is there

         11  going to be a time period where that individual have

         12  to change their color?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Yes.

         14                 MR. WEST: Okay.  If in that time

         15  period that person is not able to change the color

         16  the summons that that individual is going to be

         17  getting, we don't know what's that going to be.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: An extra one.

         19  It'll be extra. Yes.

         20                 MR. WEST: It could be anywhere from

         21  $25 dollars or $500 whatever, and at the same time,

         22  when the others are out there without the right

         23  color, there's no enforcement.  They are operating a

         24  commuter van illegally and this just now gave us now

         25  an additional ticket to be accepting from officers
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          2  whereas an unauthorized van is not getting that.

          3                 Another thing is that when you put

          4  color code where it says orange does that mean then

          5  a vehicle from an authorized company from the Bronx

          6  or Queens is then able to work in Brooklyn, or a

          7  vehicle from Brooklyn is able to then work in the

          8  Bronx?  In a way, I'm for it, but I feel a little

          9  part of that thought is that where ever the

         10  authorization is there should some kind of color

         11  code there also because as I said someone from the

         12  Bronx is now working in Brooklyn or Queens.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: Yes.  We will

         14  have the Chair --

         15                 MR. WEST: And if they're all one

         16  color it will cause some confusion there.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: You should

         18  think about it. Since it's TLC, they should put in a

         19  bid and make sure whoever bid for that color in all

         20  the vans maybe should set up a time that everyone

         21  has to go to one specific place or two, somewhere

         22  and get the same color, and everyone is coordinated

         23  and you're not being robbed.  Some people may want

         24  to charge you $4,000 to paint the van that color.

         25  So I think it should be a bid process in the
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          2  painting.

          3                 We need to go onto our next panel

          4  now.  We went sir.

          5                 MR. WEST: What Mr. Williams is trying

          6  to say is if you're going to color code the vans

          7  orange and we are in Brooklyn then you should put a

          8  white stripe for Brooklyn, a green stripe for

          9  Queens, a black stripe for the other boroughs  --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: That's why we

         11  have the hearings to find out now.  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         13    Our next panel, and our final panel, will be Desta

         14  Ayalew, Vivian Barnes and Carl Gomes.

         15                 MR. BARNES: Yes, Mr. President,

         16  members of the board, ladies and gentlemen, my name

         17  is Vivian Barnes, President for Alpha Van Line.

         18  While I listen here and hear what we all have to say

         19  about the color of the van, that will be a very good

         20  thing because the enforcement officer will recognize

         21  the van more quickly and proper, but it's one think

         22  I'm saying.  When we color these vans and we have

         23  all our proper papers, documents, article 19- A,

         24  insurance costing us $8,000 a year, five months to

         25  pay off that, plus the high gas price come back
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          2  again this time and the van identity give away, come

          3  back getting tickets from the police. It's a problem

          4  to me.  It hurts me a lot there because if the

          5  enforcement officer pull us over and we have the

          6  proper papers, the proper documents, article 19- A,

          7  the van is up to standard, I feel they should give

          8  us a break right there.  I definitely feel this so I

          9  am asking you please sir, Mr. Liu, to look into that

         10  with DOT and TLC, and let them know that because the

         11  majority of the guys out there who have gone illegal

         12  now you see they were legal, but when the police

         13  come they give everybody tickets and so many

         14  tickets. The police pull you over, they give a

         15  ticket for the owner and they give a ticket for the

         16  driver.  So you end up sometimes getting 16 tickets,

         17  eight tickets for the owner, eight tickets for the

         18  driver. At the same time, you have all the proper

         19  documents, what they require because TLC, you have

         20  to pay a tax.  If you don't pay the tax when the

         21  time comes for renewal, they're not renewing the

         22  license.  You know that.  At the same time, we are

         23  getting so much harassment from the police.  So

         24  majority of the guys have gone illegal.  So I'm

         25  asking please sir look into it.  Whenever they stop
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          2  the legal vans, and they produce all the proper

          3  papers to them, please ask them to give us a break,

          4  sir.

          5                 Let more people have something to

          6  say.  So that's my few words.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

          8    Please identify yourself for the record because we

          9  kind of went out of order.  So now I don't know who

         10  is who.

         11                 MR. GOMES: Carl Gomes from Dorcal in

         12  the Northeast Bronx.  Chairman Liu, Council Member

         13  Mealy, thank you for the opportunity to be here.

         14  The gentlemen to my right pretty much stole my

         15  thunder.  I got to tell you that.  I was here to

         16  speak effectively on this whole question of the

         17  parameters of operating in the City of New York.

         18  You have three basic tenants.  One, the required

         19  amount of insurance.  Number two, the inspection of

         20  your vehicle by New York State Department of

         21  Transportation every six months, and most important,

         22  your compliance with Article 19- A under New York

         23  State Department of Motor Vehicles.  These are

         24  necessary mandates that have been over a period of

         25  time found to be both efficacious and lasting, and
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          2  if the legal companies are doing their best to see

          3  that these three basic tenants are met, everything

          4  else to my mind is rather onerous.  The illegal

          5  operators out there do not have the required amount

          6  of insurance.  They certainly do not have their vans

          7  inspected every six months, and they're certainly

          8  not audited by New York State DMV.  These are

          9  tremendous responsibilities, Mr. Chairman, and we

         10  take it seriously, very seriously.  The fact that

         11  you must always embrace the ideology that this is

         12  the riding public entrusting their lives to you, and

         13  if you have taken the extra step, the extra mile to

         14  see that you fall within compliance then why are you

         15  being harassed?  Why?  Somebody has to tell me this.

         16                 I think we need to set- up some sort

         17  of a committee, whether it be under Chairman Liu

         18  tied in with the Taxi and Limousine Commission, and

         19  I certainly like to see Council Member Mealy there.

         20  She has been here with us the entire morning.  So we

         21  want to see this sort of thing.  Have a sort of

         22  meeting to decide what is the most important aspect.

         23                 You know in all our lives, Chairman

         24  Liu, there are priorities.  To my mind, there are no

         25  greater priorities than the three I've just
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          2  outlined.  We ought to zero in on these three basic

          3  things and see that they be done and done

          4  effectively, and you will find that if you enforce

          5  just those three basic things, you will really have

          6  a handle on things, and you will not be getting this

          7  multitude complaints.  I almost needed a

          8  nitroglycerin pill when I heard that there were

          9  8,000 tickets issued last year, 7,000 to legals.

         10  That is mind boggling.  That defies all logic.  This

         11  is insanity.  We ought to really get a grip on this

         12  whole situation.

         13                 There are a number of people out

         14  there, Chairman Liu, who are good and decent people

         15  and they want to do the right thing.  Believe me.

         16  There are hundreds and thousands of people who want

         17  to do the right thing in their daily lives, and

         18  those of us who have stepped through the very

         19  difficult financial situations involving insurance

         20  and all the different mandates, we ought to be given

         21  some measure of respect, support and generally our

         22  voice be listened to.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         24    I'm guessing, Mr. Ayalew.

         25                 MR. AYALEW: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Oh good.  You didn't

          3  look like Vivian.  Okay.

          4                 MR. AYALEW: My name is Ayalew Desta.

          5  I'm a DOT operator with Desta Transportation.  I the

          6  first DOT operator to fight with the State of New

          7  York to get the DOT.  I'm the first one.  The issue

          8  of the day, the yellow paint is good.  I like it

          9  because a lot of people complain about the paint

         10  because some of them have a charter on the commuter

         11  van.  They operate the same vehicle the same.

         12  That's a problem issue.  If you want to charter,

         13  you've got to operate a charter.  If you want to

         14  commuter, you got to stay a commuter.  So the yellow

         15  paint, I like.  Because the MTA, they don't use a

         16  contract with charter.  They are still running the

         17  bus.  So run a van, stay in the yellow.  I mean

         18  orange. I mentioned before 94 commission for Taxi

         19  and Limousine to use color for the van.  He said I'm

         20  thinking about it to do it.  After that, he

         21  resigned.  I don't know the issue.  He resigned.

         22  Because the problem is here all the charter, dollar

         23  van, all of them, operate with a livery plate.  We

         24  have two different livery plates, all of them livery

         25  plates.  The issue is that the cost is different.
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          2  You can have livery plates for $4,000 dollars.

          3  That's under charter.  You have a livery with Taxi

          4  and Limousine, it cost you about $9,000, $10,000,

          5  $12,000 depending which company you going.  You got

          6  some companies charging you $15,000 and some

          7  companies charging you $10,000.  Most people don't

          8  want to go to TLC to get the fingerprint or give the

          9  Social Security number. That's the issue, and that's

         10  the problem if you are livery, and if you are a

         11  livery then you are for hire even dollar van or any

         12  car, truck, charter, and you're not going to get

         13  tickets.  If you get tickets the same livery, it

         14  doesn't matter.

         15                 We need to change the tag first of

         16  all.  All the commuter vans have to change the tag.

         17  We don't want the livery. Change the livery because

         18  we've got a State- issued contract charter with

         19  livery plates.  Now they have a livery.  We have a

         20  livery.  If you've go to change to yellow tomorrow

         21  and the charter, if you're going to put yellow, it's

         22  still a livery.  It's still an operator picking up

         23  passengers.  That means we're not changing nothing.

         24  We need to change the tag first.

         25                 The manifest, the issue when it was
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          2  in the State, they never had a manifest in the State

          3  of New York.  When the City take over, you use a

          4  manifest.  We never had that.  The only way to have

          5  it, you can pick up on the bus route.  We can turn

          6  the corner. You're okay.  You don't have no problem,

          7  but if TLC is coming different issue,

          8  prearrangement, manifests.  You cannot pick- up 15

          9  people in the subway in one second and write

         10  everybody name, and then everybody come at different

         11  time because we have like ten, fifteen vans in the

         12  same company.  You have a problem with that. I drive

         13  for 20 years, and I fight with the State to get

         14  approved by DOT and nobody was  --  I guess he was

         15  the only one, and I don't see here anybody fighting

         16  with the State of New York.  After that, the City

         17  take over.  The City gets a problem, more problems

         18  everyday.  We're not talking about the issued

         19  ticket.  We're talking about the color.  We accept

         20  it.  We'll take it.  If you are a charter, if you

         21  are company running under the State, under the City

         22  and you use the same name, that's not right.  You've

         23  got to change your name.  You are a charter.  You

         24  have to put a different name.  If you under the

         25  City, you have to use one name.  That's the way it's
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          2  supposed to be, but a lot of business advantage to

          3  use, okay I'll change my color to yellow, and they

          4  run a charter, they don't want to hear it.  So

          5  they're always against it.  Everybody sitting at the

          6  table they're against it because I guess they have a

          7  charter.  When you have a charter, you don't need

          8  TLC license and you don't need 19- A either.

          9  Article 19- A, that's the medical, all the tests,

         10  drug, all that stuff.  You have to be tested.  They

         11  don't want that.  They don't want to hear that.  So

         12  they have one company all the same name under TLC,

         13  under the State, because the State does not issue

         14  license for a contract to run under New York City,

         15  but they do it.  They take us out from the State.

         16  They put us at TLC.  Now the State given a lot of

         17  people outside another DOT so we get competition

         18  here.  So if we're going to use the yellow, you  --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: You mean orange

         20  right?

         21                 MR. AYALEW: I mean orange.  I'm

         22  sorry.  You've got to change the tag.  The tag must

         23  change.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         25                 MR. AYALEW: The manifest must change
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          2  otherwise I don't care about the bus route.  The bus

          3  route don't bother me much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.  Thank

          5  you very much.

          6                 MR. AYALEW: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Let me note that we

          8  do have written testimony by Commissioner and

          9  Chairman of the Taxi and Limousine Commission, Matt

         10  Daus, and this will be entered into the record.

         11                 I will read the summary part of his

         12  testimony.  It reads, I commend the Council for

         13  taking up this important issue and the

         14  Administration supports the intent of the bill to

         15  clarify for the riding public whether a commuter van

         16  is licensed by the TLC, and to aid enforcement

         17  initiatives.  However, I do not believe that Intro.

         18  430 will accomplish this goal, and I cannot support

         19  it in its current form.  In sum, there may be other

         20  and better ways to appropriately mark and identify

         21  commuter vans for the public and I will ask the TLC

         22  staff to explore options to share with the Council

         23  and the TLC's Board of Commissioners for their

         24  input.  The TLC remains committed to addressing this

         25  issue and would welcome the opportunity to meet with
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          2  Council Members and their staff to further discuss

          3  possible solutions.

          4

          5  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

          6  MATTHEW W. DAUS

          7  TAXI AND LIMOUSINE COMMISSION

          8

          9                 Good morning Chairman Liu and members

         10  of the Transportation Committee.  My name is Matthew

         11  W. Daus, and I am the Commission/Chair of the New

         12  York City Taxi and Limousine Commission (TLC).

         13  Thank you for the opportunity to provide testimony

         14  regarding Intro. Number 430, which proposes that all

         15  licensed commuter vans be painted the color orange.

         16  I regret that I will not appear to testify in person

         17  and answer questions due to the late receipt of the

         18  hearing notice.  However, I respectfully request

         19  that you consider this written testimony and make

         20  arrangements to have it read into the public record

         21  as part of the hearing.  Of course, I remain

         22  available to answer any questions should the

         23  Chairman or other members of the Committee desire to

         24  contact me.

         25                 First, I will provide an overview of
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          2  the TLC's role in licensing, regulating and

          3  enforcing the laws governing the Commuter Van

          4  industry, and then address the specific components

          5  of Intro. 430.

          6                 Commuter vans are vehicles with a

          7  capacity of at least nine but not more than twenty

          8  passengers, authorized to transport them between

          9  residential locations and work, transportation or

         10  shopping hubs on a pre- arranged for- hire basis,

         11  along non- specified or irregular routes within

         12  approved geographic areas.  They are not permitted

         13  to accept "street hails".

         14                 Amendments to the State's

         15  Transportation Law in 1992 transferred jurisdiction

         16  over the regulation of commuter vans operating

         17  wholly within New York City, except at the airports,

         18  from the State to the City.  The New York State

         19  Department of Transportation (State DOT) retained

         20  jurisdiction over the safety requirements of the

         21  vehicles, including regular inspections.

         22                 Through local law, the City

         23  designated its Department of Transportation (DOT) as

         24  the agency responsible for the determination of

         25  public convenience and necessity for commuter van
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          2  services.  The TLC is the agency authorized to

          3  review applications for fitness and then issue

          4  licenses to qualified commuter van authorities,

          5  vehicles and drivers.  It is important to note that

          6  the TLC can only issue a license to a commuter van

          7  authority if the DOT makes a positive determination

          8  of public convenience and necessity.

          9                 Turning now to Intro. 430.  Without

         10  additional information, I can only infer that the

         11  intent of this bill is two fold: To equip the riding

         12  public with information that will enable them to

         13  identify legal vehicles, and to assist enforcement

         14  in identifying illegal operators.  As we are all

         15  aware, these are very real issues throughout the

         16  industry and I commend the Council for taking steps

         17  to address them.  With that said, Intro. 430, as

         18  proposed, raises several concerns.

         19                 Solely designating a color for

         20  authorized vehicles is unlikely to prevent

         21  unauthorized operators from continuing to work.

         22  Persons who are providing these services illegally

         23  have already made a significant investment in the

         24  purchase of a vehicle and the equipment necessary to

         25  create the appearance of a legal service.  In my
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          2  view, such illegal operators would be more than

          3  willing to expend additional resources to paint

          4  their vehicles the color orange to more effectively

          5  replicate the appearance of legal operation.

          6                 The TLC's enforcement officers work

          7  closely with the NYPD regarding enforcement of the

          8  laws and rules pertaining to commuter vans.

          9  Undoubtedly, our enforcement initiatives would

         10  benefit if illegal vehicles could be better

         11  identified.  However, if Intro. 430 is adopted in

         12  its current form, illegal operators would simply

         13  paint their vehicles in order to "blend in", and

         14  little ground would be gained in our enforcement

         15  initiatives.  In fact, if the riding public comes to

         16  recognize and identify orange commuter vans as safe

         17  and legal, this expectation could increase illegal

         18  street hails and lead to the proliferation of

         19  illegal vans. A primary goal under the existing

         20  regulatory paradigm should be for passengers to

         21  better identify the particular commuter van service

         22  with which they have prearranged service at the

         23  point of designated pick- up, and for enforcement

         24  officers to more easily identify illegal vans from

         25  an exterior viewpoint.
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          2                 Again, thank you for the opportunity

          3  to provide testimony.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: There being no other

          5  witnesses for this hearing, this hearing of the

          6  Transportation Committee is adjourned.

          7                 (Hearing concluded at 12:08 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, LORI KLEIN, do hereby certify that

         10  the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of

         11  the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 26th day of April 2007.
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          9            I, LORI KLEIN, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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